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NOTICE TO DEFENDANT:

(AVISO AL DEMANDADO):
LILY ROBOTICS, INC., a Delaware Corporation, and DOES 1 through

100, inclusive

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE):

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE! You have been sued. The court may decide against you without your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the information
below.

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summons and legal papers are served on you to file a written response at this court and have a copy
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response must be in proper legal form if you want the court to hear your
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more information at the California Courts
Online Self-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), your county law library, or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask
the court clerk for a fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property
may be taken without further warning from the court.

There are other legal requirements. You may want to call an attorney right away. If you do not know an attorney, you may want to call an attorney
referral service. If you cannot afford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legal services from a nonprofit legal services program. You can locate
these nonprofit groups at the California Legal Services Web site (www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Center
{www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), or by contacting your local court or county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for waived fees and
costs on any settlement or arbitration award of $10,000 or more in a civil case. The court's lien must be paid before the court will dismiss the case.
jAVISO! Lo han demandado. Sino responde dentro de 30 dias, Ia corte puede decidir en su contra sin escuchar su version. Lea la informacion a
continuacion.

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO después de que le entreguen esta citacion y papeles legales para presentar una respuesta por escrito en esta
corte y hacer que se entregue una copia al demandante. Una carta o una llamada telefonica no lo protegen. Su respuesta por escrito tiene que estar
en formato legal correcto si desea que procesen su caso en la corte. Es posible que haya un formulario que usted pueda usar para su respuesta.
Puede encontrar estos formularios de la corte y mas informacién en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de California (www sucorte.ca.gov), en la
biblioteca de leyes de su condado o en la corte que le quede mas cerca. Si no puede pagar la cuota de presentacion, pida al secretario de la corte
que le de un formulario de exencion de pago de cuotas. Si no presenta su respuesta a tiempo, puede perder el caso por incumplimiento y la corte le
podra quitar su sueldo, dinero y bienes sin mas advertencia.

Hay otros requisitos legales. Es recomendable que llame a un abogado inmediatamente. Si no conoce a un abogado, puede llamar a un servicio de
remision a abogados. Si no puede pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los requisitos para obtener servicios legales gratuitos de un
programa de servicios legales sin fines de lucro. Puede encontrar estos grupos sin fines de lucro en el sitio web de California Legal Services,
(www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), en ef Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de California, (www.sucorte.ca.gov) o ponjéndose en contacto con la corte o el
colegio de abogados locales. AVISO: Por ley, la corte tiene derecho a reclamar las cuotas y los costos exentos por imponer un gravamen sobre
cualquier recuperacion de $10,000 6 mas de valor recibida mediante un acuerdo o una concesion de arbitraje en un caso de derecho civil. Tiene que
pagar el gravamen de la corte antes de que la corte pueda desechar el caso.

The name and address of the court is: E NUMBER:
(El nombre y direccion de la corte es): SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 'é’ ‘%Cr)? = 5 5 6 3 6 5

COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO, CIVIC CENTER COURTHOUSE

400 MCALLISTER STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiff's attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is:

(El nombre, la direccion y el numero de teléfono del abogado del demandante, o del demandante gue no tiene abo

EVAN H. ACKIRON, SBN 164628, 732 BRANNAN STREET, SAN F CISCO,

DATE: Clerk, by N » Deputy
(Fecha) JAN 1.9 204+ OLERK OF THE COURT  (secretario) < L] (Adjunto)
(For proof of service 6MA% summons, use Proof of Service of Summons (form POS-010).) \ J

(Para prueba de entrega de esta citation use el formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)).
NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served

1. [ as anindividual defendant.

2. [] as the person sued under the fictitious name of (specify):

[SEAL]

3. on behalf of (specify): LILY ROBOTICS, INC., A Delaware Corporation

under: CCP 416.10 (corporation) [] CCP 416.60 (minor)
[_1 CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) [] CCP416.70 (conservatee)
[[] CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) [ ] CCP 416.90 (authorized person)

1 other (specify):
4, by personal delivery on (date):
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- CM-010

ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Name, State Bar number, and address): FOR COURT USE ONLY

GEORGE GASCON, DISTRICT ATTORNEY ($BRT8%345)

EVAN ACKIRON, MANAGING ASSITANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY (SBN 164628)

732 BRANNAN STREET N

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103 F I L E D

TeLerroNE NO: 415-551-9560 Faxno: 415-551-9580 Superier Coyn of California
artorney For veme: THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA Couqty of San Francisco
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO .
streeT aooress: 400 MCALLISTER STREET JAN 122017

maitinG aporess: 400 MCALLISTER STREET . N
cmy ano zie cooe: SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102 CLERK OF éBE COURT

sranch nave. CIVIC CENTER COURTHOUSE Ry
CASE NAME: (J  Deputy Clerk
PEOPLE V. LILY ROBOTICS, INC.; AND DOES 1-100, INCLUSIVE
CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET Complex Case Designation CASE NUMBER
&r:n"g:;?d L_—‘ t‘l\mgﬁgt [:] Counter :] Joinder 5—5—63—-6—6—
demanded demanded is Filed with first appearance by defendantc:ge-l 7 - N N
exceeds $25,000) $25,000 or less) (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.402) DEPT:

ltems 1-6 below must be completed (see instructions on page 2).
1. Check one box below for the case type that best describes this case:

Auto Tort Contract Provisionally Complex Civil Litigation
Auto (22) [:] Breach of contract/warranty (06)  (Cal. Rules of Court, rules 3.400-3.403)
Uninsured motorist (46) D Rule 3.740 collections (09) [:] Antitrust/Trade regulation (03)
Other PI/PD/WD (Personal Injury/Property [:] Other collections (09) :] Construction defect (10)
Damage/Wrongful Death) Tort Insurance coverage (18) L] Masstort (40)
Asbestos (04) Other contract (37) I:] Securities litigation (28)
Product liability (24) Real Property [:] Environmental/Toxic tort (30)
Medical malpractice (45) [ ] Eminent domain/Inverse L1 Insurance coverage claims arising from the
(1 other PvPOMD (23) condemnation (14) above listed provisionally complex case
Non-PIPD/WD (Other) Tort ] wrongful eviction (33) types (41)
Business tort/unfair business practice (07) (] otherreal property (26) Enforcement of Judgment
D Civil rights (08) Unlawful Detainer E] Enforcement of judgment (20)
[ Defamation (13) Commercial (31) Miscellaneous Civil Complaint
(] Fraud (16) [ 1 Residential (32) [ ] Rrico @n
':] Intellectual property (19) D Drugs (38) D Other complaint (not specified above) (42)
[ Professional negligence (25) Judicial Review Miscellaneous Civil Petition
L1 other non-PI/PD/WD tort (35) [ asset forfeiture (05) Partnership and corporate governance (21)
Employment l:] Petition re: arbitration award (11) D Other petition (not specified above) (43)
Wrongful termination (36) [:] Writ of mandate (02)
':] Other employment (15) D Other judicial review (39)

2. This case D is E isnot  complex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court. If the case is complex, mark the
factors requiring exceptional judicial management:

a. [_—_l Large number of separately represented parties d. El Large number of witnesses -

b. D Extensive motion practice raising difficult or novel e. [:] Coordination with retated actions pending in one or more courts
issues that will be time-consuming to resolve in other counties, states, or countries, or in a federal court

C. l:l Substantial amount of documentary evidence f. l___] Substantial postjudgment judicial supervision

Remedies sought (check all that apply): a.IZ] monetary b. nonmonetary; declaratory or injunctive relief  c. punitive
Number of causes of action (specify). TWO (2)

This case |:| is is not  a class action suit.
. If there are any known related cases, file and serve a notice of related case. (You may use form CM-Q15.)

Date: ]’)a' &O(ﬁA‘\‘L\f HTU({\!O ’ WW%?:J

(TYPE OR PRINT NAME) L/ (SIGNATUBE OF PARTY ORULFORNEY FOR PARTY)
NOTICE

o Plaintiff must file this cover sheet with the first paper filed in the action or proceeding (except small claims cases or cases filed
under the Probate Code, Family Code, or Welfare and Institutions Code). (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.220.) Failure to file may result
in sanctions.

* File this cover sheet in addition to any cover sheet required by local court rule.

* If this case is complex under rule 3.400 et seq. of the California Rules of Court, you must serve a copy of this cover sheet on all
other parties to the action or proceeding.

¢ Unless this is a collections case under rule 3.740 or a complex case, this cover sheet will be used for statistical purposes only. tor2
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CM-010
INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE COVER SHEET

To Plaintiffs and Others Filing First Papers. [f you are filing a first paper (for example, a complaint) in a civil case, you must
complete and file, along with your first paper, the Civil Case Cover Sheet contained on page 1. This information will be used to compile
statistics about the types and numbers of cases filed. You must complete items 1 through 6 on the sheet. In item 1, you must check
one box for the case type that best describes the case. If the case fits both a general and a more specific type of case listed in item 1,
check the more specific one. If the case has multiple causes of action, check the box that best indicates the primary cause of action.
To assist you in completing the sheet, examples of the cases that belong under each case type in item 1 are provided below. A cover
sheet must be filed only with your initial paper. Failure to file a cover sheet with the first paper filed in a civil case may subject a party,
its counsel, or both to sanctions under rules 2.30 and 3.220 of the California Rules of Court.

To Parties in Rule 3.740 Collections Cases. A "collections case" under rule 3.740 is defined as an action for recovery of money
owed in a sum stated to be certain that is not more than $25,000, exclusive of interest and attorney's fees, arising from a transaction in
which property, services, or money was acquired on credit. A collections case does not include an action seeking the following: (1) tort
damages, (2) punitive damages, (3) recovery of real property, (4) recovery of personal property, or (5) a prejudgment writ of
attachment. The identification of a case as a rule 3.740 collections case on this form means that it will be exempt from the general
time-for-service requirements and case management rules, unless a defendant files a responsive pleading. A rule 3.740 collections
case will be subject to the requirements for service and obtaining a judgment in rule 3.740.

To Parties in Complex Cases. In complex cases only, parties must also use the Civil Case Cover Sheet to designate whether the
case is complex. If a plaintiff believes the case is complex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court, this must be indicated by
completing the appropriate boxes in items 1 and 2. If a plaintiff designates a case as complex, the cover sheet must be served with the
complaint on all parties to the action. A defendant may file and serve no later than the time of its first appearance a joinder in the
plaintiffs designation, a counter-designation that the case is not complex, or, if the plaintiff has made no designation, a designation that

the case is complex. CASE TYPES AND EXAMPLES
Auto Tort Contract
Auto (22)-Personal Injury/Property Breach of Contract/Warranty (06)

Provisionally Complex Civil Litigation (Cal.
Rules of Court Rules 3.400-3.403)

Damage/Wrongful Death

Uninsured Motorist (48) (if the
case involves an uninsured
motorist claim subject to
arbitration, check this item
instead of Auto)

Other PI/PD/WD (Personal Injury/
Property Damage/Wrongful Death)
Tort

Asbestos (04)

Asbestos Property Damage
Asbestos Personal Injury/
Wrongful Death

Product Liability (not asbestos or
toxic/environmental) (24)

Medical Malpractice (45)

Medical Malpractice—
Physicians & Surgeons

Other Professional Health Care
Malpractice

Other PI/PD/WD (23)

Premises Liability (e.g., stip
and fall)

Intentional Bodily Injury/PD/WD
(e.g., assault, vandalism)

Intentional Infliction of
Emotional Distress

Negligent Infliction of
Emotional Distress

Other PI/PD/WD

Non-Pl/PD/WD (Other) Tort

Business Tort/Unfair Business
Practice (07)

Civil Rights (e.g., discrimination,
false arrest) (not civil
harassment) (08)

Defamation (e.g., slander, libel)

(13)

Fraud (16)

Intellectual Property (19)

Professional Negligence (25)
Legal Malpractice
Other Professional Malpractice

(not medical or legal)

Other Non-PI/PD/WD Tort (35)

Employment
Wrongful Termination (36)
Other Employment (15)

Breach of Rental/Lease
Contract (not uniawful detainer
or wrongful eviction)
Contract/Warranty Breach-Seller
Plaintiff (not fraud or negligence)
Negligent Breach of Contract/
Warranty
Other Breach of Contract/Warranty
Collections (e.g., money owed, open
book accounts) (09)
Collection Case-Seller Plaintiff
Other Promissory Note/Collections
Case
Insurance Coverage (not provisionally
complex) (18)
Auto Subrogation
Other Coverage

Other Contract (37)
Contractual Fraud

Other Contract Dispute
Real Property

Eminent Domain/Inverse
Condemnation (14)

Wrongful Eviction (33)

Other Real Property (e.g., quiet title) (26)
Writ of Possession of Real Property
Mortgage Foreclosure
Quiet Title
Other Real Property (not eminent
domain, landlordftenant, or
foreclosure)

Unlawful Detainer

Commercial (31)

Residential (32)

Drugs (38) (if the case involves illegal
drugs, check this item; otherwise,
report as Commercial or Residential)

Judicial Review

Asset Forfeiture (05)

Petition Re: Arbitration Award (11)

Writ of Mandate (02)
Writ~Administrative Mandamus
Writ-Mandamus on Limited Court

Case Matter
Wirit-Other Limited Court Case
Review

Other Judicial Review (39)

Review of Health Officer Order
Notice of Appeal-Labor
Commissioner Appeals

Antitrust/Trade Regulation {03)
Construction Defect (10)
Claims Involving Mass Tort (40)
Securities Litigation (28)
Environmental/Toxic Tort (30)
Insurance Coverage Claims
(arising from provisionally complex
case type listed above) (41)
Enforcement of Judgment
Enforcement of Judgment (20)
Abstract of Judgment (Out of
County)
Confession of Judgment (non-
domestic relations)
Sister State Judgment
Administrative Agency Award
(not unpaid taxes)
Petition/Certification of Entry of
Judgment on Unpaid Taxes
Other Enforcement of Judgment
Case

Miscellaneous Civil Complaint
RICO (27)
Other Complaint (not specified
above) (42)
Declaratory Relief Only
Injunctive Relief Only (non-
harassment)
Mechanics Lien
Other Commercial Complaint
Case (non-tort/non-complex)
Other Civil Complaint
(non-tort/non-complex)
Miscellaneous Civil Petition
Partnership and Corporate
Governance (21)
Other Petition (not specified
above) (43)
Civil Harassment
Workplace Violence
Elder/Dependent Aduit
Abuse
Election Contest
Petition for Name Change
Petition for Relief From Late
Claim
Other Civil Petition

CM-010 [Rev. July 1, 2007}
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GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

GEORGE GASCON

District Attorney

JUNE D. CRAVETT, SBN 105094
Assistant Chief District Attorney
EVAN H. ACKIRON, SBN 164628
Managing Assistant District Attorney
NANCY TUNG, SBN 203236
DANIEL C. AMADOR, SBN 247642
STEPHANIE J. LEE, SBN 279733
Assistant District Attorneys

732 Brannan Street

San Francisco, California 94103
(415) 551-9574

Attorneys for Plaintiff,
The People of the State of California

LT
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JAN 1:2 2017

CLERK OF ;BE COURT
BY: /
Oeputy Clerk
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
UNLIMITED JURISDICTION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA,

Plaintiff,
\A

LILY ROBOTICS, INC., a Delaware
Corporation, and DOES 1 through 100,
inclusive,

Defendants.
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COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT
INJUNCTION, CIVIL
PENALTIES, RESTITUTION,
AND OTHER EQUITABLE
RELIEF

Business and Professions Code
§17200 et seq. & § 17500 et seq.
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GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

The District Attorney for the City and County of San Francisco, authorized to protect
the general public within the State of California from false and misleading representations and
unlawful business practices, brings this suit in the name of the People of the State of
California. The People hereby allege the following on information and belief:

PARTIES AND VENUE

1. The authority of the District Attorney for the City and County of San Francisco to
bring this action is derived from the statutory law of the State of California, specifically
Business and Professions Code sections 17200 et seq. and 17500 et seq.

2. Defendant LILY ROBOTICS, INC., is a Delaware corporation with its headquarters
and principal place of business located in the City and County of San Francisco at 374 Harriet
Street, San Francisco, CA 94103.

3. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate, or otherwise,
of the defendants sued herein under the fictitious names of DOES 1 through 100, inclusive,
are unknown to Plaintiff, who therefore sues said defendants by such fictitious names. Each
fictitiously named defendant is responsible in some manner for the violations of law herein
alleged. Plaintiff will amend its complaint to show the true names and capacities of such
defendants, as well as the manner in which each fictitious defendant is responsible for the
violations of law herein alleged, when these facts are ascertained.

4. At all relevant times, defendant LILY ROBOTICS, INC., has committed the acts,
caused others to commit the acts, ratified the commission of the acts, or permitted others to
commit the acts alleged in this complaint and has made, caused, ratified, or permitted others
to make the false or misleading statements alleged in this complaint. Whenever reference is

made in this complaint to any act of defendant, such allegation shall mean that LILY

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CIVIL PENALTIES, RESTITUTION, AND OTHER EQUITABLE REMEDIES
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GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

ROBOTICS, INC., acted individually and jointly with the 6ther unknown defendants. The
terms “Lily Robotics” and “defendant,” wherever used in this complaint, shall mean LILY
ROBOTICS, INC.

5. Whenever in this complaint reference is made to any act of any corporate defendant,
such allegation shall be deemed to mean that such corporate defendant did the acts alleged in
the complaint through its officers, directors, agent, employees, and/or representatives while
they were acting within the actual or ostensible scope of their authority.

6. Defendant at all times mentioned herein has transacted business within the City and
County of San Francisco and throughout the State of California. The violations of law herein
described have been committed within and from the City and County of San Francisco, and
elsewhere within the State of California.

7. The actions of the defendant, as hereinafter set forth, are in violation of the laws and
public polices of the State of California and are inimical to the rights and interests of the
general public as consumers, competitors and citizens. Unless the People are granted the
remedies sought herein, including injunctive relief by order of this Court, defendant will
continue to engage in the unlawful acts and practices set forth below and will continue to

cause injury and harm to the general public.

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CIVIL PENALTIES, RESTITUTION, AND OTHER EQUITABLE REMEDIES
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GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

INTRODUCTION

8. Lily Robotics, Inc., is a company that sells a single product: a purportedly
autonomous, flying camera drone, known as a “Lily” or “Lily Camera,” that can film a user
doing a variety of activities. According to the defendant’s advertising, the user simply throws
the Lily into the air to begin filming and directs the Lily with a remote tracking device.
According to the promotional materials, the tracker has several pre-determined flight paths
from which the user chooses; the Lily, for instance, will “follow,” “lead,” or “loop” around the
user. In addition, the Lily Camera purportedly is waterproof and can land safely in the user’s
hand.

9. Lily Robotics was co-founded by Antoine Balaresque and Henry Bradlow. At all
relevant times, Balaresque was the Chief Executive Officer and a frequent company
spokesperson, and Bradlow worked as the Chief Technology Officer. Balaresque gave
numerous interviews and presentations about Lily over the course of 2015 and 2016. Both
Balaresque and Bradlow presently remain in these positions at Lily Robotics.

10. On May 12, 2015, Lily Robotics launched its preorder campaign with the release of a
professionally-produced promotional video (“Promotional Video™) that purported to
demonstrate the Lily Camera’s most noteworthy features. A minute and thirty-four seconds in
duration, the video takes the viewer through the multitude of ways one might use a Lily. From
outdoor sports to family gatherings, the Promotional Video shows a Lily in flight, and
effortlessly integrates footage that, according to the Promotional Video, was taken by a Lily
Camera.

11. In the month it was released, the Lily Promotional Video was the ninth most watched

advertisement on YouTube in May 2015, with 5.3 million views that month alone. The

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CIVIL PENALTIES, RESTITUTION, AND OTHER EQUITABLE REMEDIES
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GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

Promotional Video was published on the Internet to the general public on Lily Robotics’s
website, on YouTube, and via other media outlets’ websites that reported on the Lily Camera.

12. Notwithstanding the implicit and explicit representations that a Lily Camera was used
to film those portions of the Promotional Video that are seen from the point of view (“POV?)
of a Lily Camera, Lily Robotics did not disclose that those images in the Promotional Video
were in fact filmed by a much more expensive, professional camera drone (the DJI Inspire)
that was not made by Lily Robotics that cost between two and four times as much as the
defendant was asking for a Lily Camera. The DJI Inspire was the opposite of the
“autonomous” camera that Lily Robotics was touting. In order to achieve the POV video seen
in the Promotional Video, the DJI Inspire required two people to operate and film those shots.
Lily Robotics intentionally misled consumers into believing that the footage from the point of
view of the camera drone was actually from a Lily Camera, and failed to make any disclaimers
regarding the true source of the video footage.

13. By the end of 2015, the Promotional Video had more than 30 million views, garnering
Lily Robotics more than $34 million in “preorder” sales—more than 60,000 units from more

than 200 countries. Lily Robotics’s website (https://www.lily.camera) prominently displays

the Promotional Video on its home page. Slightly below the video was a button that
consumers could click to preorder a Lily Camera until the preorder period ended on October
7, 2016. The consumer provided credit card information to pay hundreds of dollars upfront for
a Lily Camera, to be delivered at a future date specified at the time of the preorder sale. Funds
transferred immediately at the time of purchase for the full preorder price, including shipping

costs and sales tax, even though the product purportedly would not be shipped until later.

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CIVIL PENALTIES, RESTITUTION, AND OTHER EQUITABLE REMEDIES
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GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

14. After unveiling the Lily Camera through the Promotional Video, Lily Robotics
obtained $14 million of Series A funding in 2015. According to a witness, defendant also
applied for and received a $4 million loan in 2016, because the equity funding it previously
received was likely to run out before the product could be shipped.

15. Despite taking all of these prepaid orders, Lily Robotics has continued to delay
shipment of the Lilys. When defendant began accepting preorders in May 2015, it told
customers that the Lily Camera would ship in February 2016 or May 2016, depending on
when the preorder was made. Then, in December 2015, Lily Robotics delayed all shipments to
“Summer 2016.” It delayed shipments again in August 2016; according to its notice, U.S.
customers would get their Lily Cameras in “December 2016 to January 2017,” while its non-
U.S. customers would get them sometime “later in 2017.” As of the writing of this Complaint,
not a single unit has been shipped.

16. Through this civil enforcement action, the People seek to return to customers the $34
million they paid to Lily Robotics as a result of Lily Robotics’s fraudulent advertising. The
People also will ask the Court to impose substantial civil penalties and permanent injunctive
relief to deter this kind of conduct in the future. Lily Robotics’s conduct amounts to: (1) false
advertising based on the false and misleading Promotional Video that it used in order to
induce consumers to purchase its camera drone; (2) violations of the Consumer Legal
Remedies Act; (3) theft by false pretenses by using the false and misleading Promotional
Video and other false representations to obtain money from preorder customers; and (4)
violations of the Federal Trade Commission regulations governing shipping representations

and delays.

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CIVIL PENALTIES, RESTITUTION, AND OTHER EQUITABLE REMEDIES
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1 ALLEGATIONS
2 || False and Misleading Representations About the Lily Camera Drone

3 Lily Robotics’s False and Misleading Promotional Video

4 17. Lily Robotics announced it would be taking preorders for the Lily Camera with a
5 || media blitz on or about May 12, 2015. Simultaneously, it released a professionally produced
6 || Promotional Video, “Introducing the Lily Camera,” in which viewers were able to “Meet

7 ||Lily.”!

8 introducing the Lily Camera

10
11
12
13
14

15

16

17

18. Lily Robotics engaged CMI Productions, LLC (“CMI”) to produce the Promotional
18

Video. According to the contract for CMD’s services, the purpose of the Promotional Video
19

was to “create excitement and drive sales” of the Lily Camera.
20

19. The Promotional Video introduced prospective consumers to the Lily Camera and its
21

purported functionality through snowboarding, kayaking, and family sequences. Consumers
22

23
! The video can be found on the homepage for defendant at https://www.lily.camera/ (last

GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CIVIL PENALTIES, RESTITUTION, AND OTHER EQUITABLE REMEDIES
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1 || watching the video were introduced to Lily’s purported “Throw & Go” capability, as a
2 || snowboarder throws the Lily into the air, and its rotary blades begin turning as it recovers into
3 || flight. A second sequence shows the snowboarder throwing the Lily over a bridge, after which

4 ||the Lily dips and recovers out of the canyon.

5 Introducing the Ly Camiera
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accessed January 5, 2017).
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20. The Promotional Video demonstrates Lily’s purported preset flight paths from the
point-of-view (“POV”) of the Lily Camera. In one sequence, a snowboarder goes down a
groomed ski run with ramps to jump. White text appears on the screen, highlighting Lily’s
purported capabilities. As the snowboarder approaches a ramp, the Promotional Video shows

the jump from the rear, with the text “Lily Shot | Follow™ as the video continues.

21. In another sequence, the snowboarder is shown throwing the Lily over a bridge. The
Lily Camera begins to fly, and the next frame shows the same snowboarder now waving from
a bridge as the POV video pans up with the text “Lily Shot | Fly Up.” The video then
transitions to a scenic shot of the mountains and a lake with the snowboarder walking along

the bridge with the caption “Lily Shot | Side.”
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Introducing the Lily Camera
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22. The Promotional Video shows the Lily in water-sport situations with a kayaker
displaying the purported POV “Lily Shot | Lead” and “Lily Shot | Follow” angles as the

kayaker negotiates whitewater rapids.

Introd.scing the iy Carnera

Lily Shot| Lead
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1 23. The next scene of the video focuses on a multi-generational family out for a hike on a

2 || grassy knoll. The matriarch takes the Lily Camera out of the bag and is shown successfully

Introducing the Lily Gamera

10

11

: T e o
throwing it in the air to demonstrate the ease of the “Throw & Go” functionality and the POV

12
13 “Lily Shot | Loop” feature.
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

\_i\y Shotl Loop

21

22
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1 24. The Promotional Video intersperses text in the frame that states what appear to be key

2 || features of the Lily Camera, such as “Full HD SloMo 1080p60/720p60,” “Easy Landing,” and

3 ||*20min Flight Time.” It touts Lily’s “Tracking Device,” which records sound, tells the Lily

4 || which “Lily Shot” the user wants to employ, and takes pictures. The video also shows text that

5 ||indicates that the Lily is “Waterproof,” “Ultra Portable,” and takes “12 MP” stills.

6 tntraducng the Ly G

10
11
12
13

14

15 Introducing the Lily Cansera

16
17
a Easy | =nding
19
20
21
22

23
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12 25. The Promotional Video repeatedly conveys to the viewer that video taken from the
13 perspective of the Lily was actually shot with a Lily. The POV video was labeled as such—
14 “Lily Shot | Lead,” “Lily Shot | Follow,” “Lily Shot | Fly Up,” “Lily Shot | Side,” “Lily Shot |
15 Loop.” Nearly all of these “Lily Shots” are immediately preceded by a user deploying a Lily
16 into action, telling the viewer that the next frame’s action was captured by a Lily. At no time
17 during the video is there any disclaimer stating or implying that these “Lily Shots” were not
18 really taken with a Lily Camera or that the shots are aspirational dramatizations of what Lily
19 Robotics hopes the Lily Camera will be able to do.
20 Lily Robotics Intended to Mislead Potential Customers with the Promotional Video
71 26. In fact, none of the video in the Promotional Video was shot by a Lily Camera. Most
2 notably, the POV footage used in the Promotional Video was filmed using a professional
23

SISTRICT ATTORNEY

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION, CIVIL PENALTIES, RESTITUTION, AND OTHER EQUITABLE REMEDIES

13




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

GEORGE GASCON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

camera drone called the DJI Inspire.? The DJI InspireAis a 4K -resolution, professional camera
drone that retails for over $2000, which is two to four times more than Lily’s offering price
between $499 and $899 presale. The DJI Inspire is not autonomous. To capture the POV
images shot by the DJI Inspire, two individuals were needed to operate the DJI Inspire. One
person piloted the drone with a traditional “joystick” controller while a second person
controlled the camera.

27. On information and belief, at the time of the filming of the Promotional Video, Lily
Robotics did not have a single Lily Camera prototype that had all of the features advertised in
the Promotional Video. Instead, its co-founders Balaresque and Bradlow, who were present
during the filming, brought several prototypes to use during the filming. Some, which looked
good on the outside but were not fully functional, were used only for “beauty shots.” Others
had some functionality but did not look like the product being advertised. Some actually were
able to film video, but even those were merely Lily Camera prototypes with GoPro-branded
cameras mounted to them.

28. At the time of the filming of the Promotional Video, Lily Robotics knew that it did not
have a product that could do what was going to be advertised in the Promotional Video. Prior
to the filming, Balaresque was exceedingly concerned about anyone being able to deconstruct
the Promotional Video and determine it was a GoPro and not a Lily Camera that filmed POV
sequences. In an email chain from February 2015 with CMI Director Brad Kremer, Balaresque
wrote, “For VFL [View From Lily] shots, we will be using a Go[P]ro mounted on a Lily

prototype. However, we do not feel comfortable telling people that we shot VFL scenes with a

2 Ground footage was filmed using a professional Red Epic camera. Footage of a Lily Camera
drone in flight was also filmed by a DJI Inspire drone.
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Go[P]ro (because the whole thesis of our product is that you do not need a Go[P]ro). Can you
modify a Go[P]ro image in post-processing so that people cannot tell that it was taken from a
Go[P]ro?...””

29. Even after Kremer assured Balaresque that no one would be able to tell that the edited
VFL shots were taken from a GoPro, Balaresque was still not statisfied. He asked, “Are you
sure that the Go[P]ro lens does not create a unique deformation/pattern on the image? I am
worried that a lens geek could study our images up close and detect the unique Go[P]ro lens
footprint. But I am just speculating here: I don’t know much about lenses but I think we
should be extremely careful if we decide to lie publicly.”

30. Balaresque and others from Lily Robotics were intimately involved in editing the
Promotional Video. As stated above, in the final version of the Promotional Video, none of
the POV footage was taken with a Lily. The defendant knew this to be so at the time the
Promotional Video was published.

Lily Robotics's Marketing Belied How the POV Footage Was Actually Taken

31. Even though the POV footage in the Promotional Video was filmed by an expensive,
professional drone being operated by two persons—one piloting the drone and one operating
the camera—Lily Robotics marketed the Lily as a simple product for those who were not
experienced with drones. In a company press release issued at the time of the pre-order
launch, the company stated, “The camera, completely engineered for tough aerial and water

environments, is built for outdoor action sports enthusiasts and for anyone who just wants a

3 Witnesses used the terms “POV” and “VFL” to refer to the same shot—one from the
perspective of the Lily Camera drone.
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simple, fun way to record and share their everyday activities.”* The simplicity of the Lily is
targeted to everyday people, as seen by the marketing on the Lily website. It states, “Easy as 1,

2, 3. No setup required. Just throw Lily in the air to start a new video. It’s that simple.”

Easyas1, 2, 3.

Ready. Throw. Go!

32. Co-Founder/CEO Antoine Balaresque reinforced this idea by telling people that he
came up with the idea for a Lily Camera after seeing how his mother would take photographs
on their family vacations and would never be in the pictures. For instance, he told this story
during a presentation at UC Berkeley: “My whole family came here from France. We had this
great trip, and I remember very well browsing through pictures on the family camera and I
couldn’t see my mother in any of the images. She cared so much about all these memories,
and as a result, because she was taking the pictures, she was missing from all these memories.

So this is really how the first idea for a flying camera came about.”’

% http://www.enhancedonlinenews.com/news/eon/20150512006281/en (last accessed January
5,2017.)
> https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nDgewzOjIN8 (last accessed January 5, 2017).
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33. In fact, as early as December 2014, Balaresque sent an email containing production
ideas and scenes to include in the Promotional Video. One idea that appeared under the
heading “Awesome Scenes” was a scene where a “grandma picks up or throws Lily in the air
at some point in the video (shows that anyone can use Lily).”

34. Lily Robotics apparently reached the audience it intended to reach. In a January 2016
interview with Fortune magazine, a reporter spoke to Lily Robotics’s spokesperson Kelly
Coyne, and reported that “Coyne says that most of the company’s preorders come from people
who have never owned any sort of flying device before, and that the company’s employees are
‘heads-down so that, when someone gets a Lily, they can experience what’s in that
3996

[Promotional] video.

The Promotional Video Led to Millions of Dollars in Preorders

35. In 2015 alone, Lily Robotics presold over 60,000 Lily Cameras for a total of about
$34,000,000, driven in large part by the Promotional Video. According to media reports, the
Promotional Video was viewed 5.3 million times on YouTube during May 2015, and
Balaresque stated at the previously-mentioned appearance at UC Berkeley that the
Promotional Video had been viewed more than 30,000,000 times. In addition, Lily Robotics,
the Lily Camera, and the Promotional Video were featured in positive articles and videos
published by major media outlets, such as CNN, CNBC, Business Insider, Forbes, Wired, and
countless others.

36. Beginning on May 12, 2015, the date the Promotional Video was released, Lily

Robotics invited potential customers to go to its website, where they could click on a button to

® http://fortune.com/2016/01/07/flying-camera-lily-sales-milestone/ (last accessed January 5,
2017).
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“PRE-ORDER NOW?” and input their credit card number to pay hundreds of dollars for a Lily
Camera to be shipped to them at a later date. Lily Robotics made representations about
estimated ship dates to consumers throughout the presale period. It also told consumers that
they could request a refund at any time, and had a 30-day return policy once the product

actually shipped.

-~ L | L Y e Tech Specs

37. Pre-ordering on the website was a simple task. When a customer clicked a button on
the home page to “PRE-ORDER NOW,” a new screen would appear for the customer to input
name, email address, credit card number, expiration date, CVC number, shipping country and

postal code.’

7 https://www lily.camera/ (last accessed purchase pop-up screen on October 5, 2016)
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Quantity

1

Contact Information

Payment ]

01 2018
Have: # praomo code’?
Shipping (United States only)

Uinited States

$999 $899 x 1 + $20= $919

Confirm Payment

Fowered by Ot“t

R TR e et s LT

38. In May 2015, consumers could preorder a Lily Camera for $499, a substantial
discount from the stated retail price of $999. When preorders started on May 12, 2015, Lily
Robotics told consumers that the camera drone would ship in February 2016. Preorders
continued, with price increases in $100 increments. On June 16, 2015, Lily’s Facebook page
stated that the new preorder price for the camera drone would be $599 with a ship date in May

2016, though the initial preorders would still be shipped in February 2016.

. Lily
June 16, 2015«

We have reached the end of the initial pre-order period. We want to thank
you all again for the huge amount of support Lily has received. We are
currently laser-focused on putting Lily Cameras in your hands by February
2016.

Lily is now available for pre-order at $599 with a May 2016 shipping date.
Visit https://www lily.camera for more information.
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39. On July 13, 2015, there was another price increase from $599 to $699, with a stated

May 2016 ship date.

. Lily
Juty 13 2015 W&

TWO DAYS left to pre-order your Lily Flying Camera for $599 with a May
2016 ship date, visit www.lily.camera to learn more!

Lily - The Camera That Follows You

The world's first true flying camera.

PHY AR A

40. On July 20, 2015, through its Facebook page, Lily Robotics continued to confirm a
February 2016 ship date for its initial month’s preorders and a May 2016 ship date for orders

after June 16, 2015.

. Lily
July 20, 2015

Lily is working hard to prepare for our February ship date! Check out our
latest update on our blog! And thanks to all of our customers for filling out
our survey!

https.//www lily.camera/biog/
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-f I now do a pre-order when is the planned shpping/delivery
. date?

Like Reply - July 21. 2015 at €:3dam

@ ity H{JJli you pre-order by August 15, you can expect your order to
ship in May 2016.

Like Reply - @1 .uly 23 2015 at 6 57am

41. Another price increase occurred on October 1, 2015, with the price increasing from
$699 to $799. No shipment date was provided in the Facebook post, though in a later October
15, 2015, Facebook post, Lily Robotics represented that “everything is on track for the dates

we have stated.”

. Lily
September 18 2015 &4

As September winds down, so does the $699 pre-sale price. Lily will be
available for $799 starting October 1st!

_ When can we expect its arrival?

Like - Reply @1 October 15 2015 at 543pm

m Lity Hillllll everything is on track for the shipping dates we have
stated.

Like - Reply - @5 Octoner 15 2075 at 5 46pm

ﬁ
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42. On November 30, 2015, Lily Robotics’s website blog published a post entitled “First
units off the production line!” and described the “world-class Chinese manufacturing partner”
producing the units, and how Lily’s teams have been “refining our designs to ensure they are
built at the highest standards of quality”” and to “expedite product‘ion.”8

43. Through the end of 2015, the Lily Camera drone continued to be much anticipated. In
November 2015, it was announced as a winner of “Most Innovative” product, which would be
awarded at the January 2016 Consumer Electronics Show. In December 2015, the Lily
Camera was also featured on the front page banner of the Wall Street Journal for the article

“Gadgets That Will Define Life in 2016.”

. Lity
December 30, 2018 &*

Lily starts out 2016 with a bang! We agree WSJ, Lily is a product that will
define life in 2016!

8 https://www lily.camera/first-units-off-production-line/ (last accessed J anuary 5, 2017).
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Insufficient Delay Notices and False and Misleading Reassurances to Customers

Delay Announcements And Promises that Preorder Proceeds Will Not Be Used to Pay
Operational Expenses

44. On December 17, 2015, founders Balaresque and Bradlow posted a letter to Lily
Robotics’s webpage entitled “Shipping and Fundraising Update.”® The letter, addressed to the
“Lily Community,” explained that “[t]o accommodate flight software optimization, hardware
improvements, and additional rounds of testing, we will be delaying pre-order shipments until
summer 2016.” The letter further explained technological challenges that necessitated a delay
in shipment, but sought to assuage consumer fears of funds being dissipated or that no product
would ship by announcing that Lily Robotics was “not using your money to run the company,”
that “[e]very pre-order dollar we’ve received has been placed in cold storage,” and that Lily

Robotics has secured “15 million dollars in private funding.” Lily Robotics told its customers

In the interest of transparency, we'd also like to shed some light on our financials. Some of you
have asked about the status of your pre-order funds. As you may know, we are s privately funded
company, not a crowd-funded project. This means that we are not using your money to run the
company. Every pre-order doliar we've received has been placed in cold storage. We have no

plans to use & single cent of that money unti your Lily Camera goes into final production.
So how are we handling 37 selaries. operational costs, and R&D?

Today, we're pleased to share that we have secured a total of 15 million dollars in private
funding, Our investors include Spark Capitel, SV Ange!, the Stanford-StartX Fund, as well a5
musician Steve Acki and footbal' legend Joe Montana ( ). We are very fortunate
to have the support of this increaible group of people This backing aflows us to progress toward
our ship date, expand the team as needed, end remain leser-focused on delvering & state of the

art flying camera to you in Summe- 2016,
) y

? https://www.lily.camera/shipping-fundraising-update/ (last accessed January 5, 2017).
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that customers could get a full refund “anytime from the moment you purchase your Lily
Camera until 30 days after your order arrives, no questions asked.”

45. The next price increase was mentioned in a blog post on Lily’s website on February 8,
2016.'%No ship date was mentioned, though the price would rise on February 12, 2016, from

$799 to $899.

Most of you already have your Lily Camera pre -order locked and loaded, but we still want to give
you a head's up that as of next Friday, February 12th, pre-order pricing for Lily Camera will raise
to $899 USD. If you know someone who wants to join the Lily Community, we'd love to have

them! Be sure to let them know that they still have a week to order at the $799 USD price tier.
With that, we leave you to catapult head first into the weekend. Make it a good one!

~Team Lily

46. On August 25, 2016, Lily Robotics again announced a shipment delay through another
letter signed by co-founders Balaresque and Bradlow.!! Domestic pre-orders would now ship
between “December 2016 and January 2017,” and would be fulfilled in the order they were
placed. International pre-orders now had an indeterminate “later in 2017” shipping date due to
“regulatory and logistical constraints.” Balaresque and Bradlow continued to promise “your
pre-order dollars will continue to remain untouched.” They also included a bar chart with their
manufacturing plans, showing delivery of the first domestic unit approximately in the third
week of December. Again, Lily Robotics told its customers that “if you’d like a refund, please

contact support@lily.camera and we will process your request as soon as we can.”

10 https://www.lily.camera/notes-field/ (last accessed January 5, 2017).
1" https://www.lily.camera/shipping-production-update-august-2016/ (last accessed January 5,
2017).
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All United States pre-orders will ship between December 2016 and January 2017. Pre-crders

wil ne fulfiled in the order in which they were placed Due to regulatory and logisticat constrants,
¥ f )

-
{

internationsl pre-orders will stert shipping later in 2017 We vall be sharing a more detatec rollout
plan in the coming weeks in the meantime. your pre-order doflars wil coentnue to remain

untouched. Here 5 our manufaci:umg plan:

“July | August [September| October |November|December| Junaary
Production Timeline Comments
N e B
S
Beta Phase 2 in:;m\uw; tg:iun: with
Pre-Production Run :i’s"‘::;:z::: final tests
;\ilt; ;’r;aduﬂli;n / a:fg?ly;mﬂfm
U, Pre.Sales Delivery (ol pre-orders delivered in

We Are Here First Unit Delivered

47. The preorder price remained at $899 until Lily closed the preorder rounds on October
7,2016.

The FTC “Mail Order” Rule

48. The Federal Trade Commission promulgated a series of regulations governing mail,
Internet, and telephone orders of merchandise called the “Mail Order Rule,” which applies to
the preorders that Lily Robotics solicited. (See 16 C.F.R §§ 435.1-435.3.) The Mail Order
Rule protects consumers by establishing clear guidelines for each step of the mail order
process. For example, when accepting mail orders, a business must provide consumers a
shipping date that is based on a reasonable belief that goods can be shipped in that time frame.
(16 C.F.R. § 435.2(a).) The Mail Order Rule also delineates what a business must do if goods
cannot be shipped by the date or dates promised. (16 C.F.R. § 435.2(b).) Further, it places an

affirmative duty on a seller of goods to obtain a buyer’s express consent when shipping of the
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product will be delayed beyond 30 days. (16 C.F.R. § 435.2(b)(1) & (b)(2).) A seller must
automatically cancel a customer’s order and refund the customer’s money if the seller is
unable to secure the customer’s express consent for the delay. (16 C.F.R. § 435.2(b)(1)(iii),
(b)(2)(id), (c)(5).)

Lily Robotics Did Not Have A Reasonable Basis For Any of Its Stated Shipping Dates

49. The FTC provides guidelines to help businesses adhere to the Mail Order Rule.
Businesses should be ready to demonstrate the reasonableness of its stated shipping date with
factors such as the anticipated demand, the supply needed for shipment, the fulfillment
system’s ability to fulfill orders, and adequate recordkeeping to ensure items can be shipped.

(https://www.ftc.gov/tips-advice/business-center/guidance/business-guide-ftcs-mail-internet-

or-telephone-order (last accessed January 10, 2017).) When making a representation about a

shipping date, the seller’s reasonable basis must be based on information that under the
circumstances would satisfy a reasonable and prudent businessperson, acting in good faith,
that the representation is true. (Id.) Lily Robotics knew or should have known shortly after
launching its pre-sale campaign that it could not make and ship enough Lily Cameras to fulfill
the orders by the dates it said it would, yet it continued to tell its customers it could for
months and months afterward.

50. Lily Robotics’s initial solicitation for preorder sales in May 2015 promised a February
2016 ship date. Preorders placed after June 16, 2015, were promised a May 2016 ship date.
Lily Robotics, at the time it made these representations did not have a reasonable, good faith
belief to do so. Lily Robotics had a target preorder sales goal of $2.5 million, based on its
revenue sharing agreement with CMI, which was entered into in December of 2014. Just two

months prior to the launch, defendant apparently did not have a fully functional prototype Lily
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Camera to use during the filming of the Promotional Video. In the first two weeks of sales,
preorder sales for the Lily Camera totaled more than $13 million, five times more than what
the goal target was for the entire preorder process for the Lily Camera. Moreover, Lily
Robotics had no mechanism for overseas shipment, customs, or dealing with regulations, and
yet accepted international orders, according to a witness. Within six weeks of preorder sales —
the end of June 2015 — preorder sales reached more than $25 million, a ten-fold factor greater
than defendant’s preorder sales goal.

51. Despite the staggering number of preorders, defendant persisted in its unreasonable
representations that it would deliver product by February 2016 and May 2016. It lauded the
roll out of initial units from the factory in China on November 30, 2015, less than three weeks
before it announced its shipping delay to Summer 2016.

52. According to Lily Robotics’s blog, it appears that even by December 2015 there was
not a fully functional Lily Camera. The product update blog indicated on December 11, 2015,
that the “DVT units can now do takeoff and land in hand!” This was a feature purportedly
demonstrated in the Promotional Video, which was not achieved for another six months after
the Promotional Video’s release. Just a few days later on December 17, 2015, Lily Robotics
announced a shipping delay to Summer 2016.

53. Even as Lily Robotics delayed its shipment date to Summer 2016, defendant did not
have a reasonable basis to believe that it would actually be able to ship its product during that
time frame. The reason stated was not due to unforeseeable delays, but to “accommodate
flight software optimization, hardware improvements, and additional rounds of testing.”
Again, the product update blog indicated that Lily Robotics was still doing routine product

testing and improvements well beyond a “Summer” target date, and did not indicate anything
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1 ||in terms of actual production. According to a witness, Lily Robotics picked the “Summer

2 112016” date because it “sounded good.”

3 54. To make matters worse, none of these shipping dates were reasonable when

4 || considering international customers. According to a witness, Lily Robotics did not have in

5 || place international shipment or support mechanisms in order to promise a ship date in

6 ||February 2016, May 2016, Summer 2016, or “later in 2017.” Even as Lily Robotics

7 || announced yet another delay in their August 24, 2016, message to consumers, the company

8 ||indicated that “[d]ue to regulatory and logistical constraints, international pre-orders will start
9 || shipping later in 2017.” There is no indication that there was a previous plan for international
10 || regulations, customs, or shipments for more international customers in more than 200

11 || countries. Now, with an indefinite ship date, Lily Robotics still has does not have any

12 || reasonable basis to indicate they will be able to ship internationally.

13 55. Lily Robotics’s method of recordkeeping was also inadequate to support the

14 || announced shipping dates. Defendant’s ordering system consisted of a single popup screen
15 || that asked for limited information: name, email address, credit card information, country, and
16 || zip code. It did not request a shipping address, phone number, or any alternate method of

17 || communication with the customer. According to a witness, this was a deliberate decision on
18 || the part of Lily Robotics to prevent “friction,” or loss of potential purchases by having

19 || multiple screens of input.

20 56. According to a witness, approximately 50 percent of all emails sent to customers were
2] || ever opened. By that measure, approximately 50 percent were never opened, and Lily

22 || Robotics would not be able to guarantee contact the customer or have any other method of
23 || contact than the email given at time of purchase. Given the fact that Lily Robotics did not
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obtain a shipping address or other means of contact for customers, it stands to reason that Lily
Robotics would not be able to reach a significant number of customers in order to get a
shipping address.

Lily Robotics Failed To Obtain Express Consent From Customers For Shipping Delays
And Failed To Cancel Orders and Give Automatic Refunds

57. Once Lily Robotics knew it was unable to make the February 2016/May 2016
Shipping Dates, it was required by the Mail Order Rule to provide a delay offer giving an
option to each initial preorder customer to (a) consent to the delay until Summer 2016; or (b)
cancel the order and receive a refund (“Delay Offer”). Lily Robotics was also required to
inform the preorder customers that without the customer’s express consent to the delay, the
order would automatically be cancelled because the delay was beyond 30 days of the initial
shipping date.!?

58. Lily Robotics failed to provide a proper Delay Offer to its customers regarding the
February 2016/May 2016 shipping dates. It did not receive express consent from its customers
to keep the orders open until a Summer 2016 shipping date, and yet it still kept the orders
open. Since it failed to do so, and did not actually ship within 30 days of the initial shipping
dates, Lily Robotics was required to cancel all orders and make refunds to all consumers. It
did not do so.

59. Lily Robotics was required to make a similar Delay Offer to all consumers who
ordered a Lily Camera when it made an additional delay notice to December 2016/January

2017 and “later in 2017.” Again, Lily Robotics did not provide the Delay Offer to its

I2If Lily Robotics was able to actually ship within 30 days of the originally stated shipping
dates of February 2016 and May 2016, the Mail Order Rule did not require cancellation of the
order. Shipment did not occur, so this exception does not apply.
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customers, did not ship any product within 30 days of the revised Summer 2016 shipping date,
did not obtain express consent from its customers for the delay to December 2016/January
2017/“later in 2017” delay, and did not cancel the orders and refund the purchase price to
consumers as the Mail Order Rule required.

60. Lily Robotics’s failure to comply with the Mail Order Rule was willful, intentional,
and corrupt corporate behavior. Not only was Lily Robotics aware of the Mail Order Rule, but
defendant affirmatively decided to disregard it and the consumer rights that the Mail Order
Rule was designed to protect. Part of the reason Lily Robotics decided to disregard the Mail
Order Rule was because it knew it might only be able to reach approximately half of its
customers by email, according to a witness. Absent express consent for the delay from those
unreachable customers, Lily Robotics was then required to cancel and refund those orders.
Not only would the mass cancellation have an effect on the profitability of the company, but it
would have rippling effects regarding Lily Robotics’s current valuation, its ability to secure
additional funding, and its general reputation in the marketplace. Lily Robotics intentionally
flouted the Mail Order Rule for its own corporate financial gain and to the financial detriment

of consumers.
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1 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Business & Professions Code, § 17500, et seq.

2 (Untrue or Misleading Statements)

3 61. Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, restates and incorporates paragraphs 1
4 ||through 47 as though fully set forth herein.

5 62. Beginning at an exact date unknown to Plaintiff, but in any event within three years of
6 || the filing of this complaint, and continuing to the present, defendant, with the intent to

7 || perform services, or to induce members of the public to enter into oblvigations relation thereto,
8 ||made or disseminated or cause to be made or disseminated before the public in the State of

9 || California statements concerning such services, or other matters of fact connected with the

10 || performance thereof, which were untrue or misleading, and which defendant knew or

11 || reasonably should have known were untrue or misleading and likely to deceive members of
12 || the public, in violation of Business and Professions Code section 17500 et seq. Such

13 || statements include but are not limited to all of the representations set forth and discussed in

14 || paragraphs 17 through 47, inclusive.

15 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Business & Professions Code, § 17200, ef seq.
16 (Unfair Competition and Unlawful Business Practices)
17 63. Plaintiff, the People of the State of California, restates and incorporates paragraphs 1

18 || through 60 as though fully set forth herein.

19 64. Beginning at an exact date unknown to Plaintiff, but in any event within four years of
20 || the filing of this complaint, and continuing to the present, defendant engaged in and continues
21 ||to engage in acts of unfair competition and in unfair, deceptive or unlawful business practices
22 || within the meaning of Business and Professions Code section 17200, ef seq., by engaging in

23 || the unlawful business practices set forth in this complaint.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment as follows:

1. That pursuant to Business and Professions Code sections 17203 and 17535, and the
Court’s inherent equitable powers, defendant; its successors and the assigns of all or
substantially all the assets of its business; its directors, officers, employees, agents,
independent contractors, partners, associates and representatives of each of them; and all
persons, corporations and other entities acting in concert or in participation with defendant, be
permanently restrained and enjoined from:

a. Making, disseminating, or causing to be made or disseminated, any misleading,
false or deceptive statements in violation of section 17500 of the Business and Professions
Code, including, but not limited to, the false or misleading statements alleged in the First
Cause of Action of this complaint; and

b. Engaging in any acts of unfair competition, in violation of section 17200 of the
Business and Professions Code, including but not limited to the unlawful business acts and
practices alleged in the Second Cause of Action of this complaint.

2. That pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 17536, defendant be ordered
to pay a civil penalty of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) for éach violation
of Business and Profession Code section 17500, according to proof.

3. That pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 17206, defendant be ordered
to pay a civil penalty of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) for each violation
of Business and Profession Code section 17200, according to proof.

4. That pursuant to Business and Professions Code sections 17535 and 17203, and

pursuant to the Court’s inherent equitable power, defendant be ordered to restore to every
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1 || person in interest all money and property which was acquired by defendant through its

2 || unlawful conduct, according to proof.

3 5. That Plaintiff be awarded its costs of suit.

4 6. That Plaintiff be given such other and further relief as the nature of this case may
5 || require and this Court deems proper to fully and successfully dissipate the effect of the

6 ||unlawful bugineds practices and false or misleading representations contained herein.

7 ||Dated: V{1 |F GEORGE GASCON
District Attorney

9 BY: &\

EVAN H. ACKIRON
10 Managing Assistant District Attorney
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